
 

 

 
 

CITY OF SAN DIMAS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
Wednesday, February 20, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
245 East Bonita Avenue, Council Chambers 

 
 
Present 
Chairman Jim Schoonover 
Commissioner David Bratt 
Commissioner John Davis 
Commissioner M. Yunus Rahi 
Assistant City Manager of Comm. Dev. Larry Stevens 
Senior Planner Marco Espinoza 
Associate Planner Jennifer Williams 
Planning Commission Secretary Jan Sutton 
 
Absent 
Commissioner Stephen Ensberg 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
 
Chairman Schoonover called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 
p.m. and Commissioner Bratt led the flag salute.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Approval of Minutes: February 6, 2013 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Davis, seconded by Bratt to approve the Consent Calendar.  Motion 
carried 4-0-1 (Ensberg absent). 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF PRECISE PLAN 12-06 AND DPRB CASE NO. 12-31 – A Request 

to Construct a new 8,416 square foot Multi-Tenant Shop Building located at 462-470 North 
Lone Hill Avenue at the Citrus Station in Specific Plan No. 24, Area 1 Zone.  (APNs: 8383-
009-082, -088, -094) 

 
Staff report presented by Associate Planner Jennifer Williams, who stated the proposed 
multi-tenant shop will be located south of the Panda Express on Lone Hill Avenue, and went 
over the various means of access to the site.  The DPRB has reviewed the project and found it 
to comply with the standards and development code.  The building should house five tenants, 
ranging in size from 1,000 to 2,500 square feet each, but there are no confirmed tenants at this 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 2 
February 20, 2013 
 
 

 

time.  Since the back of the building will be facing Lone Hill, the Board indicated they would like 
additional landscaping to improve the appearance from the street, and directed Staff to work 
with the applicant regarding the placement of the split-face block and tile accents.  There may 
also be an outdoor seating area to the north, which would be determined once the tenants are 
secured.  If one is added, they would then review who would have usage of the area.  Staff 
would also review the outdoor furniture at that time for conformity. 
 
Commissioner Bratt asked if this development will back up to the parking lot at Panda 
Express.  He also wanted to know if the whole building was made up of food users instead of a 
mix of uses, would there be enough parking. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated the Panda Express drive-through will separate the two 
projects, and Staff has asked to have a landscape buffer along the north property line to provide 
relief in case there is outdoor seating.  She stated there would not be a problem with parking for 
the building even if it were all food users because of the excess parking within the center and 
the shared parking agreement between all the buildings. 
 
Commissioner Rahi stated he had similar concerns because by his calculations if the building 
was 100% restaurant use, they would be short 65 spaces.  He asked if there were any counts 
taken for the existing tenants in the center. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated the site plan was to represent the area, but that there are 
over 100 excess spaces in the shopping center which will provide additional spaces for the new 
building.  They did not take any counts at this time; they used the approved parking for the 
current developments and calculated from that. 
 
Commissioner Rahi asked about the dimensions for the parking spaces, and that it seemed 
that 50% are compact spaces. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated she measured 13 compact spaces in the lot which would 
be approximately 27%.  The parking regulations set the maximum at 20% for compact, but 
when you take the entire center into consideration, it is well below the maximum percentage.  
There are also a number of spaces where the cars will be allowed to overhang into the planter 
area so they are not considered compact spaces. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if the center had a sign program and if the signage shown on the 
elevation drawings is representative of what will be used.  He also wanted to be sure that the 
citrus labels chosen for the project would be from San Dimas companies and not from other 
cities. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated there is a sign program, and after discussion at DPRB, 
Condition 24 was added requiring the developer to submit an update to the sign program to 
reflect the actual elevations. 
 
Chairman Schoonover opened the meeting for public comment.  Addressing the Commission 
was: 
 
David Powell, Applicant, Pacific Development Group, One Corporate Plaza, Second Floor, 
Newport Beach, stated they are currently negotiating leases on four of the five tenant spaces.  
In regards to the issues brought up tonight concerning parking, there is a reciprocal parking 
agreement with Costco and the other tenants of the center, and since this building will be a 
combination of retail and food uses, there will be adequate parking available.  They are 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 3 
February 20, 2013 
 
 

 

proposing standard width parking spaces, but some of them will have a two-foot overhang into 
the landscape planter as allowed by code.   
 
Commissioner Rahi stated he would prefer to see more retail uses not only because of the 
parking issues, but because he felt it would benefit the center. 
 
There being no further comments, the public comments section was closed. 
 
Commissioner Rahi stated in other centers there has been a limit of 20% of floor area for 
restaurant use and asked if that applied here. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza stated they do not have that restriction but Costco is so large, they 
do not exceed 20% for food uses. 
 
Commissioner Bratt felt there were too many compact spaces in the plan and that it was not 
realistic to use them in parking lots with the size of modern cars, and didn’t think they should be 
used in order to allow a project to meet the required number of parking spaces.  He felt the City 
should review their standards for allowing compact spaces as part of the parking calculations. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated there might be a state law that requires them. 
 
Commissioner Rahi asked if there were standards on how many can be used in a project. 
 
Assistant City Manager Larry Stevens stated the code limits the amount used to 20%.  
They are not required to be used, and if they were eliminated, for every eight spaces changed to 
regular spaces you lose one space, so it has a 10-12% impact on the total parking calculation. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated then the outcome if they were eliminated was a decrease in 
developable area. 
 
Assistant City Manager Stevens that is correct except in this case you wouldn’t because 
there is a surplus of parking spaces available installed with the Costco. 
 
Commissioner Rahi asked if there would be bike parking in the area. 
 
Associate Planner Williams stated it is a requirement and will be reviewed during the plan 
check process. 
 

RESOLUTION PC-1479 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIMAS RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL 
OF PRECISE PLAN REVIEW 12-06 AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
REVIEW BOARD CASE NO. 12-31 TO CONSTRUCT AN 8,416 
SQUARE FOOT MULTI-TENANT SHOPS BUILDING WITHIN THE 
CITRUS STATION (APNs: 8383-009-082, -088 AND -094) AT 462, 464, 
466, 468 AND 470 NORTH LONE HILL AVENUE 

 
MOTION:  Moved by Davis, seconded by Rahi to adopt Resolution PC-1479 
recommending the City Council approve Precise Plan Review 12-06 and DPRB Case 
No. 12-31.  Motion carried 4-0-1 (Ensberg absent). 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 4 
February 20, 2013 
 
 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATION 
 
3. Assistant City Manager for Community Development 
Assistant City Manager Stevens stated the regular meeting scheduled for March 6, 2013 
will be canceled, but reminded the Commission of the Joint City Council Meeting on March 11, 
2013 at 6:00 p.m. to discuss the upcoming Housing Element cycle.  At the next City Council 
meeting the mixed-use project at 301 S. San Dimas Avenue and the item discussed tonight will 
be on the agenda. 
 
Assistant City Manager Stevens stated in the past to avoid conflict with activities occurring 
on Wednesday nights in the summer, the Commission has switched their meetings to Thursday 
nights, which also accommodated Commissioner Ensberg’s class schedule.  He has indicated 
to Staff that he no longer has that obligation so they might want to consider other options, such 
as changing the meeting night at the start of Farmer’s market in April, or even consider meeting 
on Tuesdays.  They could also consider making the switch permanent instead of just during the 
months of Farmer’s Market. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated with his travel schedule Thursday nights were better for him. 
 
The Commission concurred that they would like to change the regular meeting night to the 1st 
and 3rd Thursdays of every month until further notice.   
 
Assistant City Manager Stevens stated Staff will bring a resolution to the March 20th 
meeting reflecting the change. 
 
Assistant City Manager Stevens stated letters were sent out to everyone that has a 
freestanding commercial For Sale/Lease sign indicating they had two weeks in which to remove 
them.  If they do not comply, they will be sent a final notice giving them an additional week, and 
after that citations will be issued if they are not removed.  The City Council has received a letter 
from Mr. Launchbaugh stating he is representing a group of brokers, and requesting that they 
change the standard. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated since they are allowing signs in each vacant tenant space along 
with a banner on multi-tenant buildings, which is as much signage as any tenant would receive, 
he didn’t feel they should be complaining.  He felt once the signs come down, it will make the 
City look more vibrant and allow existing tenants to thrive and bring in more business.  He 
stated he would not like to see the City Council approve a moratorium on removal of the signs at 
this time. 
 
4. Members of the Audience 
No communications were made. 
 
5. Planning Commission 
Commissioner Rahi asked if there had been any further developments on the Tzu Chi Master 
Plan. 
 
Assistant City Manager Stevens stated they have heard nothing from them since before 
Thanksgiving.  He met with the County over jurisdictional oversight and the application process 
and who would be the lead on the EIR, but it is up to the Tzu Chi to decide when to file.  The 
County and the City have suggested to them that they annex to the City and let us process the 
whole project. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 5 
February 20, 2013 
 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Bratt, seconded by Schoonover to adjourn.  Motion carried 4-0-1 (Ensberg 
absent).  The meeting adjourned at 7:51 p.m. to the Joint City Council/Planning Commission 
meeting scheduled for March 11, 2013, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jim Schoonover, Chairman 
  San Dimas Planning Commission 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jan Sutton 
Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 
 
Approved:  March 20, 2013 


